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Anited States District Court

FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CAL|FORN|A‘
VENUE: SAN FRANCISCO FILED
MAY 07 201
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, RICHARD W, WIEKING

CLERK, U.8, DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CR 13 293 YSr

BLESSED MARVELOUS HERVE,
a/k/a RODRIGUE HERVE NGANDOU,
a/k/a HERVE RODRIGUE NGANDOU,

a/k/a BLESSED ROLL HERVE,

DEFENDANT(S).

INDICTMENT

VIOLATION:

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343 - Wire Fraud
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PER 18U.S.C. 3170
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18 U.S.C § 1343, 4, see back

Wire Fraud 1
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United States v. Blessed Marvelous HERVE, a/k/a Rodrigue Herve Ngandou,
a/k/a Herve Rodrigue Ngandou, a/k/a Blessed Roll Herve

Attachment to Penalty Sheet
MAXIMUM PENALTIES (Each Count)

Count One:  (Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343 — Wire Fraud)

Impﬁsonment: 20 years
Fine: , ) $250,0f)0 (or twice the value of the property involved in the offense,
i whichever is greater) -

Supervised Release: 3 years
S_peci'cil Assessment: $100

Restitution: " To be determined by the Court
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MELINDA HAAG (CSBN 132612)
Uni_ted States Attorney

FILED
MAY 07 2013

RICHARD W, wi
N CLERK, U.8. DlBTF-%IC?‘E(:’gJ{J,g1'G
ORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA JST
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION

CE 13 293

VIOLATION: Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1343—Wire Fraud

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintift,
v.

)

)

)

)

)

BLESSED MARVELOUS HERVE, )
a/k/a RODRIGUE HERVE NGANDOU,)
a/k/a HERVE RODRIGUE NGANDOU,)
)

)

)

a/k/a BLESSED ROLL HERVE,

SAN FRANCISCO VENUE

Defendant.

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges:
At all times relevant to this Indictment, unless otherwise indicated:
Introductory Allegations |
1. Blessed Marvelous HERVE (a/k/a RODRIGUE HERVE NGANDOU,
a/k/a HERVE RODRIGUE NGANDOU, a’k/a BLESSED ROLL HERVE) (hereinafter

“HERVE”), was born in the Republic of the Congo, granted asylum in the United States on
March 5, 1999, and received United States citizenship on March 26, 2013.
I

INDICTMENT
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2. Victim 1 was a licensed real estate broker doing business in the luxury home sales
market in Marin County, California.
3. Victim 2 was the girlfriend of Victim 1.
The Scheme to Defraud

4. From approximately 2006 through approximately November 2012, HERVE
devised and executed a scheme to defraud Victim 1 and Victim 2 out of approximately $1.6
million through a series of false and fraudulent statements, representations, and promises. In
furtherance of his scheme, and to induce the victims to give him money, HERVE made material
misrepresentations, false statements, misrepresentations, and false promises, and he omitted and
concealed various material facts. These false statements included, but were not limited to, the
following:

a. HERVE falsely and fraudulently represented to Victim 1 that HERVE’s
father was the President of the Congo, a multi-billionaire, and was interested in buying millions
of dollars in real estate in the Bay Area with the assistance of Victim 1;

b. HERVE falsely and fraudulently represented to Victim 1 that the United
States government had recently seized HERVE’s assets, in excess of $43,000,000, and that
HERVE needed Victim 1’s financial assistance to prevail in the federal court case to gain access
to the $43,000,000;

c. HERVE signed four promissory notes promising to pay Victim 1 bonus
sums of $500,000 and $1,000,000 in exchange for Victim 1’s financial support of HERVE’s
quest to obtain the $43,000,000 that the government had supposedly seized;

d. HERVE falsley and fraudulently claimed to live at the Four Seasons Hotel in
San Francisco, and HERVE had Victim 1 drive him from the Four Seasons to his alleged court
hearings at the federal building in San Francisco;

e. HERVE falsley and fraudulently told Victim 1 that Victim 1 could not
observe HERVE’s court proceedings because they were secret and were being conducted
pursuant to the authority of the United States Foreign Surveillance Act;

1

INDICTMENT 2
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- f. HERVE falsely and fraudulently represented to Victim 1 and Victim 2 that

because of HERVE’s federal court case HERVE was in federal prison from 2009 through 2012;

g. HERVE falsely and fraudulently solicited funds from Victim 2 to assist
with HERVE’s alleged ongoing court proceedings and his incarceration, and to release his seized
millions. HERVE promised Victim 2 full repayment of her money plus a bonus of $1,000,000
and a luxury car upon the completion of his federal case and release of his funds;

h. in October 2012, HERVE solicited and received $47,000 from Victim
2 after HERVE falsely and fraudulently claimed he needed these funds to pay the Internal
Revenue Service to satisfy the final judgment entered against him, and that this final payment

would result in the release of his funds.

COUNT ONE: (18 U.S.C. § 1343 — Wire Fraud)

5. Paragraphs 1 through 4 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth here.
6. On or about October 4, 2012, in the Northern District of California and

elsewhere, the defendant,

BLESSED MARVELOUS HERVE,
a’k/a RODRIGUE HERVE NGANDOU,
a/k/a HERVE RODRIGUE NGANDOU,
a/k/a BLESSED ROLL HERVE,

for the purpose of executing his material scheme and artifice to defraud, and to obtain money and
property from his victims by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,
and promises, and by omitting and concealing material facts, did knowingly transmit and cause to
be transmitted a wire communications in interstate commerce, namely, $47,000 wired from
Victim 2’s bank account, ending in 5664, at Chase Bank in Florida, to HERVE’s bank account,

ending in 2556, at Citibank in San Francisco, California, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 1343.

DATED: May 7, 2013 A TRUE BILL.

) ped

FOREPERSON

INDICTMENT 3
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MELINDA HAAG
United States Attorney

7 oy Y fr

MIRANDA KANE
Chief, Criminal Division

(Approved as to form: %% )

AUSA Hallie Hoffman

INDICTMENT 4
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Northern Msﬂ:rﬁcﬁ of California FILED
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CRIMINAL COVER SHEET RICHARD W WEKING

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CAL!FORNIA.

Instructions: Effective January 3, 2012, this Crxmmal Cover Sheet must be completed and submltted along with the
Defendant Information Form, for each new criminal case. Please place this form on top of the Defendant Information Form.

Case Name:

USA v. Blessed Marvelous Herve, a/k/a Rodrigue He
' a/k/a Herve Rodrigue Ngandou a/k/a Blessed

Totaﬂ Number of Defendants

1 J . ‘2-7

Does this case involve ONLY charges under 8 U.S.C. § 1325 and/or 1326?

Yes ' No

Is this a death-penalty-eligible RICO Act gang case?
Yes No

Comments:

. Case Number: S F

Fégandou, 1 3 % 2

Is This Case Under Seal?

Yes No ‘J ‘

Venue (Per Crim. L.R. 18—1):
'SF Q/ _ OAK S

Assigned AUSA (Lead Attorney):
Hallie Hoffman
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